

**THE CONSTITUTION**

**KENYA MEDICAL TRAINING COLLEGE**  
**PORT REITZ CAMPUS CHRISTIAN UNION.**  
**(KMTCPCCU)**



**NOVEMBER 2018 EDITION**

**©2018**

## Contents

<a href="#">PREAMBLE</a>	5
<a href="#">CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION</a>	6
<a href="#">Article 1.1 Name and logo.</a>	6
<a href="#">Article 1.2 Aims and objectives</a>	6
<a href="#">Article 1.3: Core values</a>	7
<a href="#">Article 1.4 Mission</a>	8
<a href="#">Article 1.5 Vision</a>	8
<a href="#">Article 1.6 Doctrinal basis</a>	8
<a href="#">Article 1.7 Affiliations.</a>	9
<a href="#">Article 1.8 Interactions.</a>	9
<a href="#">Article: 1.9 Partnerships</a>	9
<a href="#">CHAPTER 2: MEMBERSHIP</a>	10
<a href="#">Article 2.1 Full membership</a>	10
<a href="#">Article 2.2 Associate membership</a>	10
<a href="#">Article 2.3 Membership registration fee</a>	10
<a href="#">Article 2.4 Rights and responsibilities of members.</a>	10
a) Full members.	10
b) Associate members	11
<a href="#">Article 2.5 Termination of membership.</a>	11
<a href="#">CHAPTER 3: LEADERSHIP</a>	12
<a href="#">Article 3.1: Executive committee.</a>	12
<a href="#">Article 3.2 General duties of the executive committee.</a>	13
<a href="#">Article 3.3 Duties and responsibilities of the executive committee members.</a>	13
<a href="#">Article 3.3.1 Chairperson.</a>	13
<a href="#">Article 3.3.2 Vice chairperson</a>	14
<a href="#">Article 3.3.3 Secretary.</a>	14
<a href="#">Article 3.3.4 Vice secretary.</a>	15

<a href="#">Article 3.3.5 Treasurer.</a>	15
<a href="#">Article 3.3.6 Discipleship coordinator.</a>	16
<a href="#">Article 3.3.7 Prayer coordinator.</a>	16
<a href="#">Article 3.3.8 Missions coordinator.</a>	17
<a href="#">Article 3.3.9 Chief Usher.</a>	17
<a href="#">Article 3.3.10 Worship coordinator.</a>	17
<a href="#">Article 3.4 Committees.</a>	18
<a href="#">Article 3.4.1 Discipleship committee.</a>	18
<a href="#">Article 3.4.1.1 Membership</a>	18
<a href="#">Article 3.4.2 Ushering committee .</a>	18
<a href="#">Article 3.4.3 Worship committee</a>	19
<a href="#">Article 3.4.3.1 Duties and responsibilities</a>	19
<a href="#">Article 3.4.4 Missions coordinator</a>	20
<a href="#">Article 3.4.4.1 Duties and responsibilities</a>	20
<a href="#">Article 3.4.5 Class fellowship committee</a>	20
<a href="#">CHAPTER 4: ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND THE PATRON</a>	21
<a href="#">Article 4.1: Advisory Committee</a>	21
<a href="#">Article 4.1.2 Duties and responsibilities.</a>	22
<a href="#">Article 4.2 The patron</a>	22
<a href="#">Article 4.2.1 Appointment into office.</a>	22
<a href="#">Article 4.2.2 Duties of the Patron..</a>	22
<a href="#">Article 4.2.3 Termination of the appointment.</a>	23
<a href="#">CHAPTER 5. NOMINATIONS.</a>	25
<a href="#">Article 5.1: Mode</a>	25
<a href="#">Article 5.2: Qualification for nomination of leaders in the union .</a>	25
<a href="#">Article 5.3: Nomination procedure.</a>	25
<a href="#">Article 5.4 Re-nominations.</a>	26
<a href="#">CHAPTER 6 . MEETINGS.</a>	27
<a href="#">Article 6.1: Regular Meetings.</a>	27
<a href="#">Article 6.2 General meetings.</a>	27
<a href="#">Article 6.2.1: Annual general meeting (AGM).</a>	28
<a href="#">Article 6.2.2 Special General Meeting (S.G.M).</a>	28

<a href="#">Article 6.3 Procedure for general meeting.</a>	29
<a href="#">Chapter 7: FINANCES AND ASSETS</a>	30
<a href="#">Article 7.1: Funds</a>	30
<a href="#">Article 7.2: Properties.</a>	31
<a href="#">Article 7.3 Acquisition of union's property.</a>	31
<a href="#">CHAPTER 8. AMMENDMENTS, REVIEWS AND INTERPRETATION</a>	32
<a href="#">Article 8.1 Constitutional reviews.</a>	32
<a href="#">Article 8.2 Constitutional ammendments.</a>	33
<a href="#">Article 8.3 Interpretation clause</a>	33
<a href="#">Article 8.3.1 Transitional clause</a>	33
<a href="#">Article 8.3.2 Repeal clause</a>	34
<a href="#">CHAPTER 9. DISSOLUTION OF THE UNION.</a>	34

## **PREAMBLE**

We, the **KENYA MEDICAL TRAINING COLLEGE PORT REITZ CAMPUS CHRISTIAN UNION**.

**BEING** a body of interdenominational evangelical students

**JOINED** together with the heavenly calling to live holy and righteous lives

**BOUND** together by common faith in the only God

**ACKNOWLEDGING** the sovereignty of God in creation, revelation, redemption and final judgment;

**COMMITTED** to deepening and strengthening the spiritual life of the individual as members and to witness to the Lord Jesus Christ as God incarnate and to seek to lead others to a personal faith in Him;

**APPRECIATING** our cultural, ethnic, gender and denominational diversities;

**RECOGNIZNG** the union as politically neutral, non-denominational, non-profit making and non-racial.

We **DECLARE** that any provision that is inconsistent with the Holy Bible is void to the extent of any action, addition or omission in contravention of the Holy Bible is invalid.

**COMMIT** to **ENACT** and **GIVE** this constitution to ourselves and the future generations of the Kenya Medical Training College Port Reitz Campus Christian Union

## CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

### Article 1.1 Name and logo.

The full name of the union shall be the Kenya Medical Training College Port Reitz Campus Christian Union (KMTCPCCU), herein referred as “the Union”.

The logo of the Union shall be:



### Article 1.2 Aims and objectives

The aims and the objectives of the union shall be:

**a) evangelism.**

To present Jesus Christ as the savior and Lord to all within the college and follow them with an aim of leading them to personal faith in Him.

**b) Discipleship**

To deepen and nurture the spiritual life of the members and equip them with the knowledge of the word in service of the family, church and society.

**c) Fellowship**

To promote fellowship amongst members, campus fraternity, other institutions and society at large through prayer rallies, missions and social events.

**d) Integral mission**

To equip students to bear witness to the transforming gospel of Jesus Christ in their personal and professional life and challenge them to engage in social justice issues in the society

**e) Leadership.**

To develop leadership skills that are founded and directed by the word of God, which will enable members to play a key leadership role in the Union, Church, society and nation.

**Article 1.3: Core values**

The union core values shall include:

- ❖ Integrity
- ❖ Honesty
- ❖ Excellence

- ❖ Team work
- ❖ Stewardship
- ❖ Transparency
- ❖ Accountability
- ❖ Creativity and innovativeness
- ❖ Faithfulness to the Holy scriptures

#### **Article 1.4 Mission**

Reaching and equipping students in the Union through evangelism, discipleship and leadership development.

#### **Article 1.5 Vision**

To nurture mature medical Christians to transform the family, campus, church and the society.

#### **Article 1.6 Doctrinal basis**

The doctrinal basis of the C.U shall be the fundamental truths of Christianity and includes:-

- a) The unity of God the father, the Son and the Holy Spirit in Godhead.
- b) The sovereignty of God in creation, revelation, redemption and final judgment.
- c) The divine inspiration and the entire trustworthiness of the Holy Bible as originally given and its supreme authority in all matters of faith and conduct.
- d) The universal sinfulness and guilt of all men since the fall, rendering them subject to God's wrath and condemnation.
- e) Redemption from guilt, penalty, dominion and pollution of sin solely through the sacrificial death (as a representative and substitute) of the Lord Jesus Christ the incarnate Son of God.
- f) The bodily resurrection of Lord Jesus Christ from the dead and His ascension to

the right hand of the father.

- g) The presence of The Holy Spirit in the work of regeneration.
- h) The justification of the sinner by the grace of God through faith in Christ alone.
- i) The indwelling and the work of the Holy Spirit in every believer.
- j) The one holy universal church, which is the body of Christ which all true believers belong.
- k) The expectation of the personal return of the Lord Jesus Christ.
- l) The unity of all believers in Christ.

#### **Article 1.7 Affiliations.**

The Union shall be a member of the Fellowship of Christian Unions (FOCUS Kenya).

#### **Article 1.8 Interactions.**

The Union shall be autonomous in its interactions with other bodies, persons and other organizations.

#### **Article: 1.9 Partnerships**

The Union, if need be, shall partner with organizations, churches and individuals whose objectives are in line with those of the Union. The interested parties shall write to the Union a duly signed letter requesting for partnership through the executive committee. The Executive Committee can terminate such partnership by giving a 14 days written notice to the other party on the following circumstances;

- a) On the request of the partner.
- b) Upon expiry of the time frame agreed.
- c) If the subject matter forming the basis of the partnership ends.
- d) When such partnership ceases to be beneficial.



## CHAPTER 2: MEMBERSHIP

### Article 2.1 Full membership

Shall be open to all students in the college who confess Jesus Christ and are born again and consciously sign the following declaration:

*“I declare my faith in Jesus Christ as my Lord and Savior, I will uphold the doctrinal basis of the Union and I will live a life worthy of the Christian calling and in joining the Union I am also determined to give active support to the Union as it seeks to fulfill its aims and objectives.”*

### Article 2.2 Associate membership

Shall be open to all born again former full members of the Union who uphold the aims, objectives and subscribes to the doctrinal basis of the Union.

### Article 2.3 Membership registration fee

There shall be no membership fee.

### Article 2.4 Rights and responsibilities of members.

#### a) Full members.

- a) Entitled to participate in all activities of the Union.
- b) Entitled to air views, be listened to by the leadership of the Union.
- c) Expected to contribute to the financial support of the Union.
- d) No member shall represent the Union in any official capacity except such authority be delegated by the executive committee.
- e) Eligible to hold office and participate in the elections of officials.
- f) Propose alterations, modifications and amendments to this constitution.
- g) Shall be eligible to vote in a general meetings.

**b) Associate members**

Shall be:-

- a) Entitled to participate in the Union Activities.
- b) Advise the Union on crucial issues when called upon to do so.
- c) Support the Union in its activities.
- d) Shall not be entitled to vote in general meetings, hold any office or participate in the election of officials.

**Article 2.5 Termination of membership.**

A member of the Union shall have his/her membership terminated if:-

- a) As a full membership ceases to be a student of the college.
- b) He/she writes to the Secretary of the Union desiring termination.
- c) He/she is ex-communicated as a result of violation of the Union's objectives and doctrinal basis.

## **CHAPTER 3: LEADERSHIP**

The Union leadership shall be vested in two categories of leadership namely:

- a) Executive committee leadership.
- b) Ministry leaders.

**Article 3.1: Executive committee.**

There shall be an executive committee of the Union which shall serve for one year and consist of:

1. Chairperson.
2. Vice chairperson
3. Secretary.
4. Vice secretary.
5. Treasurer
6. Chief usher.
7. Prayer coordinator.
8. Discipleship coordinator.
9. Missions coordinator.
10. Worship coordinator.

**Article 3.2 General duties of the executive committee.**

- a) Shall be responsible for implementing the aims of the Union and oversee the duties of other office bearers.
- b) The committee shall have power to appoint an individual person to be in charge of some activities and make reports to the committee upon which action shall be taken as it may seem desirable to the Committee.
- c) Shall be responsible for appointment of an advisory committee as stipulated in **Article 4.1** of this constitution.
- d) Prepare all Union's semester programs.
- e) Shall organize for leadership development for the Union.
- f) Shall prepare an annual budget to be proposed in the Annual General Meeting.
- g) Shall be responsible for overall use, maintenance and rent of Union assets.
- h) Shall handle all disciplinary matters in consultation with the CU patron.
- i) Purchase and sell various CU assets.
- j) Shall enact policies to incorporate evangelistic teams and any other organization or groups in the Union as in line with the aims, objectives and the doctrinal basis of the Union.

### **Article 3.3 Duties and responsibilities of the executive committee members.**

The executive committee office bearers roles shall be:

#### **Article 3.3.1 Chairpersons.**

- a) Shall unless prevented by an illness or other sufficient cause preside over all Executive and general meetings.
- b) Shall be a member of the Pwani Region Students Executive Committee (RSEC)
- c) Shall represent the Union on issues involving the administration in regards to matters pertaining to the activities of the Union.
- d) Shall represent the Union in forums in and out of the college.
- e) Shall lead the fellowship within the vision of the work among students and associates.
- f) Shall be a signatory in the Union's bank account approved by the executive committee.

#### **Article 3.3.2 Vice chairperson**

- a) Shall deputize the Chairpersons of the Union,
- b) Shall play the roles of the chairperson in his/her absence or any duty delegated to him/her by the chairpersons, committee or this constitution.
- c) Shall be in charge of class fellowship committee, welfare ministry and guidance and counseling.

#### **Article 3.3.3 Secretary.**

- a) Shall take minutes in every meeting and shall be responsible for preservation of all records and registers of membership.
- b) Shall deal with correspondences of the Union except that which falls directly to any other official.

- c) Shall be a member of the Pwani Region Students Executive Committee (RSEC)
- d) Prepare announcements and notices for all services/meetings and shall see to it that no announcements are made in the Christian Meetings unless in accordance with the aims and objectives of the Union.
- e) Shall in any case of urgent matters where the executive committee cannot be consulted for an immediate action consult with the Chairperson. The decision reached will be subject to ratification in the next Executive Meeting.
- f) Shall be a signatory in the Union's bank account approved by the executive committee.
- g) Shall maintain the Union's emailing service.
- h) Shall oversee all publications and issuance of forms of certificate.

#### **Article 3.3.4 Vice secretary.**

- a) Shall deputize the Secretary in is/her absence or where necessary.
- b) Shall be in charge of the media and information Technology/ Publicity Ministry in the Union.
- c) Shall manage all the social media platform of the Union including Face Book page and twitter accounts.

#### **Article 3.3.5 Treasurer.**

- a) Shall receive and disburse under the directives of the Executive Committee, all finances belonging to the Union
- b) Shall advice the committee on the matters of financial status of the Union and resource mobilization.
- c) Shall prepare monthly financial statements and present the report to the Executive Committee and to the Union at least once a month.
- d) Shall be responsible to the Executive Committee and members and shall ensure

proper books of accounts of all finances received and paid by the CU are written down, reserved and available for inspection.

- e) Shall be a signatory in the Union's bank account approved by the executive committee.

#### **Article 3.3.6 Discipleship coordinator.**

- a) Shall sensitize and organize the Union members into small Bible Study groups.
- b) Shall coordinate the Bible Study group leaders, keep records of attendance and monitor the study effectiveness.
- c) Seek out and suggest relevant Bible Study materials to be used by the Union members.
- d) Shall be in charge of Discipleship Committee in the Union as the Chairperson.
- e) Shall see to it that all discipleship programs are carried out effectively.

#### **Article 3.3.7 Prayer coordinator.**

- a) Organize and coordinate intercessory meetings
- b) Mobilize the Union to prayer and fasting
- c) Come up with prayer items with the help of other Union members.
- d) Organize and plan for sharing in all morning devotions.

#### **Article 3.3.8 Missions coordinator.**

- a) Shall sensitize, organize and mobilize members of the Union in mission issues.
- b) Shall be responsible of evangelism in and out of college.
- c) Shall be in-charge of hospital ministry.

#### **Article 3.3.9 Chief Usher.**

- a) He/she shall lead the ushering committee in all CU service and meetings.

- b) Shall be the chairperson of the Ushering committee.
- c) Shall be responsible for the hospitality of the visitors and in-charge of the visitors book.
- d) Shall ensure spiritual growth of the ushering committee members.

#### **Article 3.3.10 Worship coordinator.**

- a) Shall be the praise and worship leader.
- b) Shall be in charge of Shouts of Joy, creative ministry, Choir, instrumentalist(s) and the custodian(s) as stipulated in **Article 3.4.3**.
- c) Shall be in charge of coordination of the Sunday and the mid-week services and planning.
- d) Shall ensure spiritual growth of the ministries under him/her.

#### **Article 3.4 Committees.**

##### **Article 3.4.1 Discipleship committee.**

Shall be appointed into office by the electoral college.

Shall serve for one spiritual year.

##### **Article 3.4.1.1 Membership**

- a) shall comprise of Bible study coordinator-who shall be the Chairperson,
- b) Anza FYT leader,
- c) BEST-P leader,
- d) Endelea and Vuka Fit leader,
- e) Two Brothers' and sisters' fellowship leaders and
- f) One special member from the Union who subscribes to the Christian faith and upholds the doctrinal basis of the Union and upholds the aims and objectives of the Union.
- g) In consultation with Executive Committee be responsible for the general

spiritual growth of the ministries under them.

- h) Shall be accountable to the executive committee on Committee affairs through its Chairperson

#### **Article 3.4.2 Ushering committee .**

- a) Shall be headed by the Chief Usher who shall be the Chairperson.
- b) Shall be appointed by the electoral college at least twelve (12) members.
- c) Shall make seating arrangements in the Union meetings and services.
- d) Welcoming members and visitors to the meetings and services (Hospitality)
- e) Collection of offerings in all services.
- f) Serving members and visitors food and drinks in meetings organized to have such.
- g) Responsible and accountable for the Union's utensils.
- h) Shall be accountable to the executive committee on Committee affairs through its Chairperson

#### **Article 3.4.3 Worship committee**

Shall consists of the following:

- a) Worship coordinator who shall be the Chairperson
- b) Shouts of Joy ministry leader
- c) Choir ministry leader
- d) Creative ministry leader
- e) Instrumentalist(s)
- f) Custodian(s)



#### **Article 3.4.3.1 Duties and responsibilities**

- a) Organize and coordinate the ministries in all union services.
- b) Shall ensure organization and coordination of choir members of the union.
- c) Shall ensure good management of the Union instruments and advice the Executive Committee on improvement, purchases and repairs of the instruments.
- d) In consultation with Executive Committee be responsible for the general spiritual growth of the ministries under them.
- e) Shall be accountable to the executive committee on Committee affairs through its Chairperson

#### **Article 3.4.4 Missions coordinator**

The committee shall comprise of:

- a) Missions Coordinator who shall be the Chairperson
- b) Missions Secretary.
- c) Mission Treasurer.
- d) High School Ministry Leader.
- e) Hospital Ministry Leader

#### **Article 3.4.4.1 Duties and responsibilities**

- a) Shall be responsible for outreach and in-reach in the Union.
- b) Shall mobilize funds and other resources for missions.
- c) Shall be the main mission organizing organ.
- d) In consultation with Executive Committee be responsible for the general spiritual growth of the ministries under them.
- e) Shall be accountable to the executive committee on Committee affairs through its Chairperson.

#### **Article 3.4.5 Class fellows hip committee**

- a) Shall be headed by the vice chairperson

- b) Shall comprise of all Union's class representatives
- c) Shall be responsible on organizing class fellowships and devotions.
- d) Shall be responsible for updating union's class membership registers
- e) Shall be responsible for mobilization of the Union's activities in their respective classes.

## CHAPTER 4: ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND THE PATRON

### Article 4.1: Advisory Committee

Shall be appointed by the executive committee as in **article 3.2**

- i. The membership shall consist of
  - a) Campus ministry facilitator (CMF) or a FOCUS Staff attached to the Union.
  - b) Patron
  - c) Two associate members
  - d) A faculty staff who subscribes to the Christian faith and upholds the Union doctrinal basis as set in **article 1.6** and the aims and objectives of the Union.
- ii. The Executive committee shall nominate members of the committee and propose them in the AGM to be confirmed by a motion with a simple majority of votes.
- iii. The committee shall serve for a period of one year renewable at the discretion of the Executive committee by a motion in an AGM.
- iv. They shall meet at least once a semester or when need be, in which the Chairperson of the Union will attend to give updates on the CU progress and advise or be advised where necessary on areas of concerns and need
- v. The Patron of the Union shall be in charge of the committee as the chairperson and the covener.
- vi. The committee members shall not hold leadership positions to encourage student leadership and nurturing.

- vii. The decision reached by the committee will be relayed to the executive committee for effects.

#### **Article 4.1.2 Duties and responsibilities.**

- a) Shall attend the union executive meeting(s) when called upon to do so.
- b) Prioritize close relationship with C.U's members with view of sound Christian mentorship.
- c) Advise and encourage the Union leaders and members on exemplary Christian leadership and lifestyle.

#### **Article 4.2 The patron**

##### **Article 4.2.1 Appointment into office.**

The union shall have the office of the patron who shall:

- a) Be born again Christian and a member of the staff in the college who upholds the objectives and the doctrinal basis of the union.
- b) Be appointed by the Executive committee, proposed and approved by a motion in an AGM by a simple majority vote of members present.
- c) Serve for a period of one year renewable not more than two (2) consecutive spiritual years.

##### **Article 4.2.2 Duties of the Patron.**

- a) Provide a link between the Union and the college administration.
- b) Advise the executive in running and accomplishment of the Union objectives.
- c) Assist the counselling department on counselling issues.
- d) Encourage the CU members to play an active role in serving the community.
- e) Assist in handling disciplinary cases as requested by the Executive committee.
- f) Shall be a member of the Advisory committee as stipulated in **Article 4.1**

### **Article 4.2.3 Termination of the appointment.**

The patron shall cease to hold the office if:

- a) The tenure of the Patron expires.
- b) Writes to the CU secretary requesting to end the tenure in course of the spiritual year.
- c) Deviates from the sound doctrine as laid in the doctrinal basis of the Union **Article 1.6.**
- d) He/she is transferred from the college to another.
- e) Fails to perform his/her duties officially as reviewed by the Executive committee

## **CHAPTER 5. NOMINATIONS.**

### **Article 5.1: Mode**

- a) Shall be held once in a year every November.
- b) Method of election shall be through a secret ballot.
- c) The secretary shall give a 14 days notice before 1<sup>st</sup> of November to the Union members and on the intention of holding the election and they shall mobilize prayers for the same.

### **Article 5.2: Qualification for nomination of leaders in the union .**

- a) Must be a born again Christian and committed to the Union's activities.
- b) Shall be a member who sets a good example to the believers in speech, conduct, love, faith and purity.
- c) Shall have been in the college for a minimum of six months.
- d) Final year students shall not be eligible for any nominations.
- e) Executive committee members shall only be eligible once.

**Article 5.3: Nomination procedure.**

- a) The ineligible Executive committee members, two members nominated by the Executive Committee and a FOCUS staff shall form the electoral college which shall conduct the nominations.
- b) The current executive committee shall remain in office until the AGM.
- c) Union members shall nominate leaders who they feel should serve in the next Executive committee.
- d) The nominations MUST be held in a CU gathering with not less than 50% registered members present.
- e) The electoral college shall then scrutinize the results on the basis of spiritual maturity, leadership capability, availability, commitment and make the final list of the leaders.
- f) The electoral body shall fill the other leadership positions who shall be presented to the Union members seven (7) days before the AGM confirm of the acceptance of the offer.
- g) The new leaders shall be confirmed into office in the AGM as set in the **Article 6.2.1** of this constitution.
- h) The electoral college shall be dissolved in the AGM.

**Article 5.4 Re-nominations.**

The executive committee shall re-nominate members into office if it falls vacant by:

- a) Resignation of a leader.
- b) If a leader deliberately neglects his/her official duties.
- c) Deviates from sound doctrines as laid in the Holy Bible and doctrinal Basis
- d) Absence of a leader for more than one semester.

Re-nominations shall be held within 14 days of an office falling vacant.

## **CHAPTER 6 . MEETINGS.**

There shall be two categories meetings namely; Regular meetings and General Meetings.

### **Article 6.1: Regular Meetings.**

- a) Fellowships, prayer meetings, bible studies, weekend challenges, trainings, rallies, and such other meetings shall be organized or arranged by the committee to be held on days and times convenient to the Union. Other meetings like Praise and Worship, intercessory prayers, choir practice shall be held at times convenient to each group or fellowship. Sister and brothers fellowship shall be held twice a month at times convenient to the Union.
- b) Brothers and sisters Sunday shall be held twice a semester at times arranged by the Executive committee.
- c) The Executive committee shall meet at least twice a month on convenient days and time with quorum of not less than two thirds (2/3)
- d) There shall be an all leaders meeting i.e. Executive and ministry leaders at least twice per semester.

### **Article 6.2 General meetings.**

There shall be two types of General meeting namely:-

- a) Annual General Meeting (AGM).
- b) Special General Meeting (SGM).

#### **Article 6.2.1: Annual general meeting (AGM).**

- a) Shall be held once a year in the last week of November in a day convenient to the Union.

- b) Notice and announcements shall be brought to the attention of all members in writing not less than 21 days before the date of the meeting.
- c) The agenda of the meeting shall consist of the following:
  - 1) Confirmation of minutes of the previous A.G.M.
  - 2) Presentation of reports from every official on his/her office performance.
  - 3) Consideration of accounts.
  - 4) Confirmation of new office bearers.
  - 5) Such other matters as the Executive Committee may decide after giving the required notice of 21 days before the date of the A.G.M.
  - 6) Any other Business.
- d) The quorum of the AGM shall be 50% of the registered members.
- e) Motions in the AGM shall be adopted by a simple majority vote.

#### **Article 6.2.2 Special General Meeting (S.G.M).**

- a) The Executive committee may call an SGM for any specific purpose.
- b) Notice shall be given to members not less than 7 days in writing before the date thereof.
- c) An SGM may also be requisitioned for a specific purpose by the order of at least 25% of the registered members in writing to the secretary who will pass it to the Executive committee and such meeting shall be held within 21 days of the date of requisition.

#### **Article 6.3 Procedure for general meeting.**

- a) The AGM shall be lead by the Chairperson or in his absence the Vice chairperson or in his absence a member of the Executive committee chosen by the committee members.
- b) The chairperson may at his discretion limit the number of persons permitted to speak in favour of or against any motion.

- c) Resolutions shall be decided by adopting a motion moved by a full member and adopted by a majority vote.

## **Chapter 7: FINANCES AND ASSETS**

### **Article 7.1: Funds**

- a) The funds of the Union shall only be used for the purposes the Executive committee considers proper in accordance with the aims and objectives of the Union.
- b) All monies and funds shall be received and paid to the treasurer and shall be deposited with the bank approved by the Executive committee. The signatories



to the account shall be the Chairperson, Secretary and the Treasurer. Bank transactions shall be made by any of two signatories. The signatories to bank account shall be reviewed during the AGM.

- c) No payments shall be made from the treasury without the resolution of the Executive committee authorizing such.
- d) At the end of the spiritual year, the treasurer shall produce an account for the receipts and payments and statements of assets and liabilities made up to date and certified by the Executive committee.
- e) The union may at times lend money to members on requests in writing through the Executive Committee that shall approve the request and sign commitments on the same.
- f) A sum to be determined by the Executive committee shall be kept by the treasurer as petty cash for disbursements.
- g) The treasurer shall present audited financial report to the AGM for the financial year.

#### **Article 7.2: Properties.**

- a) All properties of the Union shall be exclusively under the care/custody of the Executive committee of the Union.
- b) There shall be a custodian who will be in-charge of the day to day handling of these items and who will be responsible for the maintenance of the same.
- c) The properties shall not be released, rented or lent out unless the Custodian should receive an application letter, that shall be approved by the Chairperson or a member of the executive committee in his/her absence.
- d) The borrower shall be responsible for any damage to instruments and must sign a commitment form to the same.
- e) The properties shall not be used for any other activities that abuse or contravene the aim and the statements of faith of the Union and must give priority to Christian growth and constitutional provisions herein.

**Article 7.3 Acquisition of union's property.**

- a) The Christian Union shall from time to time acquire property both movable and immovable for furthering the aims of the Union through Donations, Gifts and Purchases.
- b) They shall be registered in the Union's inventory.

**CHAPTER 8. AMMENDMENTS, REVIEWS AND INTERPRETATION**

**Article 8.1 Constitutional reviews.**

- a) This constitution shall be reviewed after every two (2) years.
- b) The Executive committee shall appoint a Constitution Review Committee that shall be composed of Five (5) members.
- c) The process of reviewing the constitution shall begin in the month of June of the second year from the previous review or adoption.
- d) The reviews shall be adopted in a Special General Meeting or in the Annual

General Meeting.

### **Article 8.2 Constitutional amendments.**

This constitution shall not be amended unless:

- a) The Executive committee recommends amendments to this constitution.
- b) Full members may propose alterations, modifications or the amendments to this constitution.
- c) At least 14 days notice in writing of any proposed amendments has been given to the secretary of the Union who shall give at least fourteen (14) days notice to the members of general meeting at which the amendment is to be considered.
  - i) The resolution approving the amendment shall be at an SGM where 50% of the full members are present and it will then be passed by at least 25% of all members present.

### **Article 8.3 Interpretation clause**

The power to interpretation of any part(s) of this constitution shall be vested in the Executive Committee of the Union.

#### **Article 8.3.1 Transitional clause**

This constitution shall take effect,

- a) Upon adoption and approval by the Constitutional Review Committee Commission and Executive Committee,
- b) Dissemination of adopted constitution to C.U members within 7 days,
- c) After a simple majority vote by voting members of the C.U in a Special General meeting.  
PROVIDED that the Constitution shall take effect on the date of such vote and be the Constitution of Kenya Medical Training College Port Reitz Camus Christian Union on the effective date.

#### **Article 8.3.2 Repeal clause**

The Constitution in force immediately before the effective date of this

Constitution shall stand repealed on the effective date.

## **CHAPTER 9. DISSOLUTION OF THE UNION.**

- a) The union shall not be dissolved except by a resolution passed in the annual general meeting by vote of 75% of the registered members present.
- b) The quorum shall be 65% of the number of members of the union and if the quorum is not met, the proposal to dissolve the union shall be submitted to a further specific general meeting held a month later.
- c) No dissolutions should be effected without prior information in given to the patron, advisory committee, college administration and Fellowship of Christian Unions (FOCUS Kenya) in writing prior to the AGM of which the dissolution is to be considered.
- d) On dissolution the custody of the Union property shall be transferred to the FOCUS headquarters and given back to a new CU as long as the CU is affiliated to FOCUS.

- e) Subject to the payment of all the debts of the Union, the balances thereto shall be transferred to the Fellowship of Christian Unions (FOCUS) office to seek redress against any person(s), institution(s) intending to prejudice, underrate or assume ownership of the said balances herein.
- f) Custody of the balances in question shall be transferred to the new Union as long as it is affiliated to FOCUS.